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PROCUREMENT CLARIFICATION LOG

SCHOOL HEALTH AND WELLBEING SURVEY SERVICE



1. General Information

1.1. To offer information equally amongst potential suppliers, the Council are required to log any clarification questions asked and answers provided.

1.2. Where we have been asked questions regarding this procurement, the answers to which may be relevant to all potential suppliers, these clarification questions have been reproduced below along with the associated answers.

2. Question List and Answers

	
	Date
	Questions and Answers

	Q1. [bookmark: _Ref220435874]
	12-Jan-2026	Q:	Are you able to confirm how many completes you typically receive (split between printed and online)?

	
	
	A: 	In 2024, we had approximately 6000 children complete the survey, split fairly evenly across secondary and primary settings. We would aim to increase this in 2026. In 2024, paper copies made up approximately 15% of surveys completed however, the Council’s preferred method of survey is online/digital. As part of mobilisation the Council will discuss and agree with the successful Provider a clear protocol to ensure online/surveys are the default choice for schools whilst offering paper-based surveys as a alternative under specific circumstances.

	Q2. [bookmark: _Ref220436354]
	12-Jan-2026	Q:	How many Schools typically take part, just so we are clear around the reporting requirements?

	
	
	A:	In 2024, we had 35 primaries and 10 secondaries participate. We would hope to increase this in 2026. 

	Q3. 
	12-Jan-2026	Q:	Are you able to share how many open-ended answers are included within the survey for the qualitative analysis request?

	
	
	A:	In the 2024 primary school survey, we had 3 open ended questions (branched from other responses), and 18 open ended boxes to answer an ‘other’ type response.
In the 2024 secondary school survey, we had 4 open ended questions (branched from other responses), and 38 open ended boxes to answer an ‘other’ type response.
The Council intends the vast majority of questions will use multiple choice for responses.

	Q4. [bookmark: _Ref220432752]
	12-Jan-2026	Q:	The request for quotation also mentions benchmarking against regional and national datasets, is this data that you have internally or something that we would source?

	
	
	A:	The Council does not hold regional or national datasets. The Provider would be expected to source data for other areas as is reasonably available.

	Q5. [bookmark: _Ref220430301]
	12-Jan-2026	Q:	Under ‘Quality Requirements’, the RFQ mentions ‘continued data analysis by provider as and when required from the authority’. Are you happy for us to provide daily costs for this, and then cost this as needed? Alternatively, we could provide a cost based on a set number of days (e.g. 5 days of analysis time) and then decrease / increase as per requirements.

	
	
	A:	Commissioners may request additional data analysis on specific areas of interest to gain insight and intelligence on an ad-hoc basis. Such requests may be prior to final reporting outputs and would typically not be expected to be particularly involved. For example, the successful Provider may be asked to produce a quick data summary ranking responses by school around specific areas/themes e.g. vaping prevalence. As such requests would be minimal, infrequent, and low in volume, costing by full workday would be excessive. Costing this element is thus left to the discretion of bidders as either a separate element or ‘packaged’ into the total cost of reporting outputs.


	Q6. 
	13-Jan-2026	Q:	In general, we are anxious that the very low word counts are not going to allow us to give sufficient detail about our services to distinguish ourselves from other providers. I note that your RFQ itself required nearly 7000 words, but our explanations of how we are to achieve what you want are to take no longer than 1250 words in total.

	
	
	A:	The Council is required to assess each quotation fairly on its own merit and so sets word limits to manage internal resource availability against service complexity and market size. 

The Council will maintain the word limits as originally outlined, and it is suggested bidders provide succinct responses in the first instance. Where necessary, Providers are welcome to submit separate documents in an accessible format showing examples of relevance aligned to specific questions and within word limits. The Council reserves the right not to take forward to evaluation words submitted beyond stated word limits.

	Q7. 
	13-Jan-2026	Q:	One detail in the specification in particular is of concern:
“Data will be retained only for the duration necessary to complete analysis and reporting.”
Can data be retained from the resulting survey data set indefinitely?

	
	
	A:	Where there is clear justification for retention of data for further/future reporting this will be in compliance with the service specification and so not a concern for commissioners.

	Q8. 
	14-Jan-2026	Q:	The provider will use a structured project management methodology (e.g., PRINCE2 or equivalent).
      Are you going to insist on this for a project of this scope?  Getting PRINCE2 certified is likely to take us more time and effort than delivering the questionnaire survey.

	
	
	A:	The Council will not insist on Providers having accreditation / certificates for proficiency in a specific validated methodology such as PRINCE2. In general, the Provider is expected to have a structured and competent approach to project and risk management. The Question 13: Project Management and Risk Mitigation provides opportunity to discuss this in detail. 

	Q9. [bookmark: _Ref220436429]
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	We note that the specification states that the minimum participation target will be “TBC with the provider and commissioners.”

However, for costing purposes, can the Council please provide indicative figures for:
· the approximate number of schools the survey is expected to be distributed to (by primary, secondary and post-16 settings)
· the approximate pupil population within scope
We recognise that final participation targets will be agreed post-award, but indicative volumes would help ensure bids are costed on a realistic basis.


	
	
	A:	Improve on 35 primaries and 10 secondaries as per the response rate for the 2024 survey. 
Suggested target:
· 50% of primaries (55)
· 75% of secondaries (15)
· 50% of FE (3)

Estimated pupils numbers:
· Pri – 55 x 86 = 4730
· Sec – 300 x 10 = 4500
· FE – 1500

	Q10. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	The specification requires benchmarking against national and/or regional data across a range of topic areas.
For clarity, can the Council confirm whether benchmark datasets will be provided directly by the Council, or whether the provider is expected to source and licence appropriate national and regional data?

	
	
	A:	Please review the response give to Q4.

	Q11. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	We note that the specification requires providers to offer both online and paper-based survey options, with digital as the preferred delivery method.
For costing and delivery planning purposes, can the Council clarify:
· Whether paper-based delivery is expected to be exception-based (for example, in specific SEND or accessibility related circumstances) or available routinely across all settings
· Whether bidders should assume responsibility for printing, distribution and data entry of paper responses within the contract price.


	
	
	A:	The Council can confirm, paper-based survey will be expected to be exception-based. Bidders should assume responsibility for printing, distribution and data entry of paper responses within the quotation.

	Q12. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	The specification refers to the possibility of “deep dive” or subject-specific analyses, and “continued data analysis” as and when required by the Council. Can the Council indicate whether bidders are expected to include a capped number of deep-dive and additional data analyses within the contract price? If possible, an indicative expectation would be helpful for costing purposes.


	
	
	A:	Please review the response to Q5 on “continued data analysis”. Deep dive requests would similarly be low in volume. For indicative expectations, the time equivalent for a single day would be expected to cover the needs for all asks within this space.

	Q13. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	We note that the specification requires an “Aggregated local authority report, including comprehensive data sets that link with Local Area Partnerships”. Please could you clarify what is meant by ‘link’; e.g., should the survey data be imported into existing LAP databases, align with the LAP data definitions, or something else?


	
	
	A:	The Council intends final reporting to include subsets in data visualisation and trend analysis etc. to be subdivided by the geographical footprint of LAPs as per the Local Authority initiative. The specific subdivisions or catchment areas will be shared with the successful Provider and should be easily managed e.g. filtering by postcode.

	Q14. [bookmark: _Ref220443765]
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	The specification requests individual school level reports; what format and level of depth is required? E.g., raw data, data tables, charts, written commentary? Will these be one-off, or will the supplier be required to provide further updates?


	
	
	A:	The individual school-level reports will effectively summarise all responses received from a given school. These would typically include visualisations of data in the form of infographics, data tables and charts for the aggregate total and be further subdivided by year group, gender, local geographies etc. with contextual information included. As the reports would be identical from one school to the next in the final agreed upon format as a template it would effectively be a one-off task to produce and finalise the template and then load the individual school data in to generate the multitude of school reports.

	Q15. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	Do you require separate surveys for each cohort (Years 5-6, Years 7-11, Post 16), or a single survey? In either case, will there be any routing or variation in survey duration (e.g., based on participants’ age, SEN requirements, etc), or will all participants see the same questions?


	
	
	A:	Survey participants will see two alternative surveys based on year group as primary school or secondary school including further education. Ideally these will be inclusive of SEN requirements.

	Q16. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	What type of teacher training is needed? Would video and/or written instructions about how to complete the survey suffice?


	
	
	A:	Typically, this could be an information session where schools can ask questions and seek advice. A recorded video or information sheet may capture the bulk of training/support needs, however, the Provider will be expected to support clarifications through a direct communication channel e.g. email, although online person-facing support would be preferred.


	Q17. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	Do you have an expected SLA for response time to technical queries?


	
	
	A:	The Council does not currently have SLAs with Schools. However, during mobilisation commissioners will discuss and agree with the successful Provider reasonable timelines for responses.

	Q18. [bookmark: _Ref220435798]
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	When would the survey launch, and how long is fieldwork expected to take?


	
	
	A:	The survey is expected to be available for pupils to complete through June and July. Registrations open for schools to participate in February and close at Easter. Survey development will occur through February and March.

	Q19. [bookmark: _Hlk220441344]
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	Do schools and/or participants receive any form of incentive?


	
	
	A:	No

	Q20. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	What is meant by “Warranty for data integrity and secure handling”?


	
	
	A:	The Provider is expected to guarantee that the survey data will remain accurate, uncompromised, protected, and properly handled typically maintaining backups and utilising encryption—and to take responsibility if they fail to meet these standards. 

	Q21. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	What ethics approval processes will the supplier engage with? Do you have a timescale for this?


	
	
	A:	Ethics approvals will not be a responsibility for the Provider as the Council will utilise existing processes internally. Where an ethics approval is deemed necessary this will be included within the development and approval phase between February and April.

	Q22. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	Has the survey been undertaken before?


	
	
	A:	Yes, the survey has been conducted previously.

	Q23. [bookmark: _Ref220443504]
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	How many times has this survey been undertaken?


	
	
	A:	Since the establishment of the unitary authority, the survey has been conducted twice.

	Q24. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	How long has fieldwork taken in previous years?


	
	
	A:	Please review the response to Q18.

	Q25. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	Is the Council seeking continuity with the existing School Health & Wellbeing Survey (questionnaire or indicators), or should bidders assume a largely new survey, albeit aligned to national measures?


	
	
	A:	The Council intends to maintain continuity although some adaptations will be required.

	Q26. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	What demand has there been for paper-based surveys in previous years?


	
	
	A:	Please review the response to Q1.

	Q27. 
	15-Jan-2026	Q:	Should deliverables (e.g., reports, data tables) include data from previous waves of the survey? If so, please confirm what format the data will take (e.g., SPSS, csv), and when it will be shared.


	
	
	A:	No, it is not expected to include data from previous iterations of the survey.

	Q28. 
	16-Jan-2026	Q:	Is there a word count for the social value response?


	
	
	A:	No

	Q29. [bookmark: _Ref220443481]
	16-Jan-2026	Q:	Will there be any facilitation from NNC to support with school engagement?


	
	
	A:	Yes, the NNC Healthy Schools team will support with engagement with education settings

	Q30. 
	16-Jan-2026	Q:	Are there any expected levels of response rates in each of the 3 settings?


	
	
	A:	Please review the response in Q9.

	Q31. [bookmark: _Ref220443571]
	16-Jan-2026	Q:	Is there any information from previous surveys that will be made available to providers?


	
	
	A:	The Council can provide reports from previous iterations of the survey to the successful Provider.

	Q32. 
	16-Jan-2026	Q:	Are schools already prepared and expecting this survey?


	
	
	A:	Schools are aware that the survey will be available this year, but no formal communication has been made yet.

	Q33. 
	16-Jan-2026	Q:	There is an expectation to collect data anonymously. We have interpreted the right to withdraw consent, as happening by parent or child before the data collection - and not afterwards. Is this correct?


	
	
	A:	Yes, withdrawal from participation in the survey will occur before data collection. It will not be possible to withdraw consent to data after participation in the survey as all data will be anonymised.

	Q34. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	How many previous waves of research have taken place and is there a link to past research/reports that can be shared?


	
	
	A:	Please review the responses to Q23 and Q31. There is no link available to previous reports as these have not been published.

	Q35. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	The RFQ mentions benchmarking to national or regional wellbeing data, do you have specific data sets in mind? If so, please can you share the details?


	
	
	A:	Please review the response to Q4. 

	Q36. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Are there KEY metrics of comparability, that must be included?


	
	
	A:	Please review the response to Q14. Specifics will be discussed in detail during the development phase with the successful Provider.

	Q37. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Are the same year group cohorts monitored in these studies?


	
	
	A:	In previous iterations of the survey participating schools were asked to, at least, complete the survey with Year 6, 8 and 10.

	Q38. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Please could you share details of the national health and education bodies that you align with for best practice guidance?


	
	
	A:	The Council’s Public Health team typically aligns with the Department for Education, OHID, NICE & the NHS

	Q39. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Can you please confirm if Y6 are to be included in the study? P3 ‘General Requirements’ states only Y5 at Primary age, yet the RFQ scope says pupils in Y5-6


	
	
	A:	Yes, Year 6 will be included.

	Q40. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Are we correct to assume ALL primary/secondary/post-16 establishments will be given the opportunity to take part in the survey and that this includes: 122 primary schools / 23 secondary schools / 17 colleges and sixth forms?


	
	
	A:	All primary (111), secondary (21 + 1 all through) and FE settings (6) will be invited to take part. The number of settings able to participate will ultimately depend on the costings of the successful Provider.

	Q41. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	What were the levels of completion from each establishment in previous waves of research?


	
	
	A:	Please see response to Q1 and Q2.

	Q42. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Have you ever included pupils who are home-educated?


	
	
	A:	The Council has previously invited home-educated families to take part, but uptake was poor. There is scope within this service to expand into this area and could be further discussed with the successful Provider.

	Q43. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Do you have point(s) of contact at each establishment / would you be able to facilitate the necessary introductions etc


	
	
	A:	The Council’s Healthy Schools team will support with engagement with education settings.

	Q44. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	Do you force an equal representation/weighting of responses to each year group? Again, linked to the above point, how have the final numbers been agreed on previous waves of research?


	
	
	A:	Previous reporting outputs detailed a complete summary of all participants. Weighting responses to control for specific parameters can be discussed with the successful Provider. Ultimately the number of participants will be limited by the successful Provider’s costs within the budget cap and the engagement of schools. 

	Q45. 
	20-Jan-2026	Q:	In terms of returning our proposal, is this via email and not through an online tender site/portal?


	
	
	A:	Yes, please return your final quotation via email to laura.ielapi@northnorthants.gov.uk 

	Q46. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	Would be grateful for some clarification in relation to the costing table on page 25.

a) Could you please provide a brief description of each cost heading listed in the table, including what types of costs should be included under each heading?
b) I would also welcome clarification on eligible and ineligible costs if possible please, as this is not yet clear to me from the review of the documentation.
c) Where applicable, could you please advise under which cost heading different categories of expenditure should be included, to ensure costs are allocated correctly and in line with your expectations?


	
	
	A:	Yes, to clarify: 
· MATERIALS are for physical, tangible, consumable items required specifically for delivering the School Health & Wellbeing Survey
· ANNUAL LICENCE COST (Whole Contract Term) is for any recurring software or platform licences that must be in place throughout the contract to run the survey.
· CONTRACT FEE (Whole Contract Term) covers all professional services, staff time, and the entire delivery effort needed to meet the Specification.
· ADDITIONAL COSTS NOT OTHERWISE SPECIFIED is for clearly defined, project-specific items not captured under the first three headings

Bidders are expected to determine eligible costs to complete their quotation to meet the needs of the service specification and note what would not be included as appropriate. Bidders are expected to include costings as they deem appropriate for evaluation by the Council.

	Q47. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	The document said we will have a project lead to be named. Where would they sit and what responsibilities would they have?


	
	
	A:	The successful Provider is expected to have a project lead as the project manager and main point of contact. They will be expected to be accountable for the delivery of the service as per the service specification.

Laura Ielapi (Healthy Schools Coordinator) will be the lead for the Council and will support with question development and will guide with communications to settings.

	Q48. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	How do you envision our contact with the schools working? Would the project lead provide contacts and schools for us to contact, will you facilitate introductions to schools? Would we liaise directly with schools or facilitate introductions, or would we need to contact schools independently directly?


	
	
	A:	The Council’s Healthy Schools team will make introductions between the successful Provider and the schools and then support with promotion of the survey throughout.

	Q49. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	Do we require any approvals (e.g., PVC) or vetting to engage with schools?


	
	
	A:	Any approvals will be sought by commissioners in the first instance and this would not be a responsibility of the successful Provider. The service does not require any formal vetting (e.g., DBS checks) for the successful Provider.

	Q50. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	How many schools are involved? You mention school level reports - how many reports would you expect this to be?


	
	
	A:	Please review the response to Q9 for a suggested target. The Council will require each participating school to receive a report with their individual school level data. The total number of participating schools can’t be known in advance of the registration phase to be conducted in the coming months.

	Q51. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	The document mentions surveys to be completed during the academic year. Is the survey expected to be open a full academic year, or a defined shorter timeframe?


	
	
	A:	The survey will be available for students to complete throughout June and July.

	Q52. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	Will we be expected to run workshops or speak with some schools to ensure the survey is appropriately designed?


	
	
	A:	The Council’s Healthy Schools team will gather feedback from schools on the design.

	Q53. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	For the wider benchmarking piece would you provide additional datasets or contacts for us to liaise with to gain this data or is it expected to be publicly available?


	
	
	A:	Please see the response to Q4.

	Q54. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	Who are providers and commissioners for the project?


	
	
	A:	North Northamptonshire Council’s Public Health team are the commissioners for this project. The service Provider will be chosen following evaluation of all bids received for this opportunity.

	Q55. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	Clarity on the compliance KPI and what this is referring to specifically? Also, for the participation rate whilst we could encourage participation we do not have the authority to mandate a survey - would there be escalation point that can drive participation?


	
	
	A:	Compliance refers to the adherence with the Council’s terms and conditions and delivering against the service specification.

The Council will support the Successful Provider, in encouraging uptake and engagement, however, the Successful Provider will be required to provide support to schools e.g. through information sessions or otherwise which can act as a means of driving up participation.

	Q56. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	Clarity on expectations of the deep dive analysis that might be requested. There must be a limit on how much additional analysis could be requested.

	
	
	A:	A focused, extended analysis of one theme, such as: mental wellbeing, patterns in bullying, substance use, physical activity, health inequalities, review of a specific demographic or group (ethnicity, FSM, etc.) Comparison potentially across local authority area or against similar schools, with regional/national benchmarks. These will be discussed upon contract award.

	Q57. 
	21-Jan-2026	Q:	The document discusses survey platforms but would using tools such as MS Forms be considered a viable solution?


	
	
	A:	The Council does not forbid any specific platform, but requirements are specified in the specification section. 

	Q58. 
	23-Jan-2026	Q:	What is the anticipated number of schools expected to participate?


	
	
	A:	Please see responses to Q1 and Q2.

	Q59. 
	23-Jan-2026	Q:	What is the target/expected response rates per school?


	
	
	A:	Please see responses to Q9.

	Q60. 
	23-Jan-2026	Q:	Could you please confirm which types of schools will be included (e.g., Local Authority maintained schools, academies, free schools, independent schools)?


	
	
	A:	The Council does not include eligibility criteria for schools. The following is not an exclusive list, however, by way of example: Local Authority Maintained Schools, Academies, Free Schools, Voluntary Aided & Voluntary Controlled Schools, Faith Schools, Post‑16 settings (sixth forms, colleges), Special schools / SEN settings (if within remit) may be included.

	Q61. 
	23-Jan-2026	Q:	Is there an existing online platform that you use for collecting survey data from schools that will be used for this project, or are you looking for a new platform to be used?


	
	
	A:	The Council expects the Provider to offer and manage the platform used for data collection.

	Q62. 
	23-Jan-2026	Q:	How will accountability for data returns be managed, and will support be provided to ensure a complete and robust dataset?


	
	
	A:	Accountability for data returns sits entirely with the Provider, who must ensure fieldwork is completed on time, participation risks are managed, and KPIs (including participation rate and data quality) are achieved. Accountability is enforced through regular reporting and oversight by the commissioning authority.

Yes — support will be provided. The Council’s Healthy Schools team will make introductions between the Provider and the schools and then support with promotion of the survey throughout. The Provider must deliver training, technical support, clear instructions, engagement activities, and data quality assurance processes to ensure the dataset is complete, accurate, and robust.

	Q63. 
	23-Jan-2026	Q:	Does the data collection need to include a paper option for data collection, or can it be fully online?


	
	
	A:	Yes, the Provider is expected to offer paper questionnaires by exception, however, a digital offer is preferred in line with the Council’s net zero policy.

	Q64. 
	23-Jan-2026	Q:	Table F (Pricing Schedule) refers to clicking on an icon to Enable Macros, but this is not visible in the document. Should the prices from Table G pull through and sum in Table F?


	
	
	A:	The note on enabling macros for an embedded pricing schedule was an oversight. This should not have been included as there is no additional pricing schedule.

Bidders are expected to complete Tables F and G as appropriate to complete their quotation. No formulas have been embedded and bidders are expected to ensure any detailed breakdown sums up to the respective sub-totals and final total price value.



Procurement Clarification Question Log | Page 2 of 3
image1.jpeg
Bl /. _ North
-‘a Northamptonshire

———— Council




